
Board of Commissioners- Meeting

Minutes for Town of Minnesott Beach

October 9, 2018

The meeting ofthe Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Mimesott Beach, WaS held

Tuesday October 9, 2018 at 7:00 P.M at the Mimesott Beach Town Hall・

Board members present: Mayor Tim Fowler, Commissioner Adam Garfinkel,

Commissioner Cliff Braly, Commissioner Starr Murphy and Commissioner Hall.

Others present: Carolyn Braly, Town Manager and Doma Scott, Town Clerk. Others

PreSent Were: Tim Buck, Panlico County Manager, Judy Stiles, Nick & Val Calcavecchia,
Barbara Gould, Ed K可at, Bob Dillard and Ben Hollowe11.

Mayor Fowler welcomed everyone to the meeting and called the meeting to order at 7:00pm

With a moment of silence and lead everyone in the pledge of alliance to the flag・

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to the October 9, 2018 agenda. He

asked to switch #3 to #2 under old business. Commissioner Hall moved to approve the

agenda as anended. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to August 14, 201 8 regular meeting

minutes. He explained there was not a September Board of Commissioners’meeting

because of the mandatory hurricane evacuation order. Commissioner Braly moved to

approve the minutes. A11 ayes.

Public Comments:

1. Judy Stiles reported she flooded for the first time since she’s owned the house

(21yrs). She said her car was flooded as well as her garage, an Outbuilding which

WaS insulated and crawI space under her house. She lost a11 ofher HVAC duct work.

The runoff from the home behind her seemed to be a mayor contributing factor. Ms.

Stile says the water drained into her lot from the lot next door as well. She asked if

the town could dig a drainage ditch along the property lines. She said she had no

flood insurance and has no resources to elevate or fix her drainage issues. She has

COntaCted FEMA for help but they have not gotten back to her.

Mayor Fowler reported he and Commissioner Braly had taken a look at Mrs. Stiles’

PrOPerty and he said her house is sitting in a “bowl’’with the surrounding properties

Sitting higher. He said he was not sure what the town could do for her. The Town

does not do repalr WOrk on private property that is not already part ofthe Town’s

drainage system.

2. Ed Kujat, President ofthe Board of Directors ofthe Mimesott Golf & Country Club,

Said the club is the third largest parcel ofthe property in Mimesott Beach. The club

has been in operation for 49 years and has been a part ofthe fabric ofthe

COmmunity. He said he wanted to let the town board know the financial position of

the club is not good. The number ofmembers has declined over the past ten years

and the average age ofmembers continues to increase. He said their operating

expenses have been cut to bare bones. Mr. Kujat said they had tried nunerous ways

to increase membership and raise revenue. The possibility ofthe club cIosing is



Significant and that will adversely affect Mimesott Beach property owners. He

asked for the town’s assistance in commg uP With some new ideas that might help to

COntinue operations. He said perhaps there are things that could be done prior to

CIosing that would benefit the town in the long run. Ifthe club does cIose, he

PrOPOSed the town board consider perhaps a working group could be fomed to see if
actions could be taken to make the transition smoother. Mr. Ktjat thanked the

board for allowing him to speak. Mayor Fowler said Ed had approached him before

the storm about coming to talk to the commissioners. He said the club is commg uP

On a Crisis situation and they wanted to give the town a head’s up what was gomg On.

The purchase ofthe club, POOl, etC. Mayor Fowler said it was not on the table for

discussion but rather informational.

3. Bob Dillard said he wanted to support the MG&CC staying open because the local

high school uses it and Panlico County needs a golfcourse. He is also concemed

about the property values in the community. He said they did not want the club

PrOPerty broken up by a developer. He asked what the town can do to help preserve
home values.

4. Nick Calcavecchia said his concem was town drainage. He said as new houses are

built, the natural flow of water is interrupted. He said he hoped the town could come

up with a plan to help manage the everchanging flow of drainage water. AIso, he

reported there was water bubbling up in the asphalt on Pinewood. Town Manager

Carolyn Braly said it is a break in the county water line and they were notified over a

Week ago. She will fo11ow up with another call. County Manager Buck said the

Water leak is scheduled for repalr.

Val Calcavecchia said on backside ofthe property on Phillips where the modular

home is, yOu Can See Where the water drained down to Ms. Stiles home. She asked

about set back lines and why the town could not go in and dig a drainage ditch.

5. Ben Ho11owell said ifthe town board decided to form a committee to address the

Mimesott Golf & Country Club issues, he would more than happy to serve on that

COmm誼ee. To help determine what the town could lega11y do.

Town Manager’s report: Ms. Braly reported no active zonmg Pemit applications. She

asked to order new flags for the town. The only quote so far is for 48 flags from Carrot Top

at a cost of$17.95 each for a total of$903.72 which includes taxes and shipping.

Commissioner Braly asked what the life expectance ofthe flags. Ms. Braly said she

Changes out the Town Hall flag about every 3 - 4 months. The flags on the poles last about

2-3 years. Commissioner Murphy moved to purchase the flags. All ayes. Commissioner

Hall asked how the old flags would be disposed of Ms. Braly said she would probably give

them to Doma Scott to take to the Shriners. Commissioner Murphy said the Arapahoe Boys

Scouts & VFW would also take them.

Planning Board Report: Commissioner Garfinkel said the Plaming Board did not

meet in September or October.

Old Business for discussion and possible motion or action:

1. Pamlico County FIood Prevention Ordinance - Mayor Fowler said Panlico County

had given the Town a FIood Prevention Ordinance Resolution to readopt. At the

meeting in August there were some questions. Mayor Fowler introduced Mr. Tim



Buck, Pamlico County Manager, and said he is here to answer those questions.

Mayor Fowler said his understanding we had already signed this resolution in 201 5

for a period of5 years and we were asked to re-Sign to get in cinque with other

towns’renewal dates. The resolution is in support ofthe 39-Page Ordinance which

allows the county to administer with FEMA. Mr. Buck said Panlico County

Participates in the community rating system. The County does all ofthe required

activities required by FEMA which includes flood insurance. He said basically this

allows individuals to apply for flood insurance and get discounts. That is part ofthe

benefits for residents ofthe Town ofMimesott Beach. Mr. Buck said the reason for

Mimesott Beach to renew the resolution now was the ordinance is in a new format

and to comply with the community rating system. By doing this the county gets a

higher rating with a11ows for more ofa discount on flood ins皿anCe. In a flood

hazard area, it defines things like storm surge or certain drains that surge. He said

the county has a 2-foot宜ee board: - the flood elevation plus 2-feet above is the

required minimum building height. He said the wave action on the Neuse during

FIorence played havoc on some cinderblock walls. Commissioner Garfinkel asked if

Mr, Buck was aware of any pending or anticipated changes to the demarcation ofthe

flood zone. Mr. Buck said there are new proposed flood maps that have gone

through the public hearing process and, Within the next year or so, they will be up

for adoption. He said one issue is a lot ofareas that were in the flood plain at one

time are not in it now. He said it takes so Iong to develop the models that this new

flood map did not include areas flooded by HuFTicane Irene in 201 1. This was one

Ofthe more significant flood events for Pamlico County before FIorence.

Commissioner Garfinkel asked if there were properties that would be required to be

elevated. Mr, Buck told him nothing is required to be elevated unless there is

Substantial damage (over 50%) to the structure and it is going to be repaired or an

addition will be added. Commissioner Braly asked how folks are notified of flood

map changes. Mr. Buck told him with the technoIogy available, eVeryOne Can look

at the old maps and the new maps. Commissioner Garfinkel asked for clarification

ofFIood Zone and FIood Hazard areas. Mr. Buck said he would check into that.

Commissioner Hall asked if there were reevaluations of the Ordinance would the

Town have to reapprove them? Mr. Buck, after a public hearing, the town would

have to approve it again. Mayor Fowler asked for a motion to approve the

Resolution for the Pamlico County FIood Prevention Ordinance Commissioner Braly

moved to approve the Resolution for the Panlico County FIood Prevention

Ordinance. All ayes.

2. Mayor Fowler reminded the Commissioners they had approved, Via email vote on

September 27, 201 8, the MOU to join in the use of services through Pamlico County

for stom and vegetative debris clean-uP. For the record at an open meeting, he

asked for a motion to approve the MOU. Commissioner Braly moved. All ayes.

3. Mr. Buck said the debris clean-uP had begun. The trucks will be making multiple

PaSSeS t血ough the neighborhoods. He said construction & demolition debris &

Vegetation debris are going to temporary sites. One is behind the old Arapahoe

School. Mayor Fowler said there are two contracts in play: the county is picking up

debris on all ofthe town streets and DOT is cleaning up debris on the state roads.

They are picking up the large logs and coming back to pick up the smaller debris.



4. Mr. Buck recommended anyone needing help should apply with FEMA and SBA. If

SOmeOne is tumed down by both, there is still a grant available. Infomation is

available at the Town Hall. Mr. Buck said the distribution center in Alliance is still

OPen. It is mamed by a volunteer staff Commissioner Ha11 complimented the

Emergency Manager, Chris Murray, for a job well done! He said he was concemed

about how info is distributed to folks without a cell phone.

5. Town drainage: Mayor Fowler gave to the commissioners a list oftown drainage

PrOblem areas. He said Commissioner Braly has done an anazing job dealing with

SOme Ofthe emergency situations. Ben Casey’s yard flooded on Hardison Drive. The

town’s ditch was dug deeper and cleaned out. A path had to be dug through Victoria

Hardison’s yard where the town’s drainage from Hardison Drive was backing up in her

yard. Mayor Fowler reported there is a drainage system on Indian Bluffthat is
OVergrOWn and will need to be cleaned out. He said he’d identified seven areas that will

require attention, tWO Ofwhich action has already been taken on an emergency basis.

Once water is in the town’s ditches, it is the Town’s problem. Getting water to the

ditches is the residents’responsibility. We have a drainage study that was done in 2012.

Mayor Fowler said he and Commissioner Braly are putting together a plan to address the

rest ofthe drainage issues along with a cost estimate. They recommend having Josh

Nobles shoot some elevations so we will know what needs to be done to fix these

drainage issues. Some of the problems are where residents have put driveways across

the town’s rights-Of-Way Without putting in a culvert. We also need to address the depth

ofsome ofour ditches. Mrs. Calcavecchia asked ifone has to build some kind of

drainage system when building a new house? Mayor Fowler said we do not have that

requlrement in our zonmg Ordinances. Mrs. Stiles asked about danage to her property

CauSed by drainage from lots on Phillips Drive. Mayor Fowler said that is between her

and her neighbors. Mrs. Calcavecchia asked ifthe town could go in an put in drainage

ditches. Mayor Fowler said no, nOt On Private property. The town has easements on the

Street Sides ofproperty, nOt down property lines. There are set back requlrementS On all

lots in Mirmesott Beach.

Mayor Fowler asked for authorization from the board to spend about $ 1 0,000 to correct

the drainage between Hardison Drive & Wayne Drive. Commissioner Ha11 moved to

allocate $10,000 for these drainage repairs. All ayes. Mayor Fowler said the di餓井enCeS

in the drainage issues between Hardison Drive & Wayne Drive and Mrs. Stiles’and Mr.

Casey’s issues are theirs are from neighbors’property and Wayne Drive’s is from the

town,s drain on Hardison Drive.

6. Update on Burton Farms/Arlington Place Letter of Credit - Mayor Fowler reported

receiving documents that the remammg rOad work in Arlington Place has been

COmPleted with the exception of some shoulder work and meter boxes @ approximately
$23,000. Commissioner Hall moved to hold in escrow a check from Arlington Place for

$24,000 until such time as the work is finished and paid for. All ayes. Town Manager

Will contact Arlington Place and make them aware ofthis decision.

7. New Attomey: Mayor Fowler said he and Commissioner Garfinkel met with Aaron

Amette, Who will take over as the Town’s attomey from Jimmie Hicks. Commissioner

Garfinkel said it was in the Town’s interest to continue with the same firm.

Commissioner Hall moved to retain the services ofAttomey Aaron Amette. All ayes.



New Business for discussion and possible action: Mayor Fowler reported Gina

Pawlikowski sent a letter to the Commissioners regarding drainage and flooding

issues. He has included Country Club Drive on his list. Commissioner Muxphy said

Hu正cane Florence was a historic event with 30” ofrain on top of a very wet summer.

Current Finances:

Commissioner Hall reported revenues are comlng m aS eXPeCted with expenses well within

the budgeted totals. The Town’s current assets as of September 30, 201 8 are: First Citizen’s

Bank Checking $16,786.06; First Citizen’s MM $224,080.81 ; CressCom Bank’s Savings

$218,175.37; North Carolina Management Trust is $204,936.10; Petty Cash $50.00. The

town currently has CDs at First South Bank & Savings totaling $228,596.28. Total assets

for the Town are $916,258.56. Commissioner Hall moved to transfer $1000 to account 414

from account 406. All ayes. The commissioners all have a copy ofthe宜nancial report

Which, by reference, is made a part ofthe minutes and may be viewed at the townhall.

Misce11aneous: Both Commissioner Garfinkel and Commissioner Braly expressed their

SymPathies to Mrs. Stiles and her situation. They offered assistance and advice in their

CapaCity as a fellow citizen.

There being no further business, Commissioner Braly moved to a句oum the meeting. All

Ayes.

Doma Scott, Town Clerk


